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JOHN R. P □□ LE, CPA 
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1 34 NORTHLAKE DRIVE 

HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Hohenwald, Tennessee 
Hohenwald, Tennessee 

Repor·t 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

(6 1 5) B22-41 77 

I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund of the City of Hohenwald1 Tennessee (the "City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, 
and the related notes ,o the financial statements, which co1lectively comprise the City's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the govetnmental activities, the business-type activities and 
each major fund of the City, as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and the 
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, State Street Aid Fund, Drug Fund and the Solid 
Waste Fund for the year then ended and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

1 conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicab le to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. My responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my 
r p 1t. I am required to be independent of the City w1d to meet my other ethical respon ibilHies, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to my audit. I believe that the audit evidence I 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statemellts 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
ace rdance with accounting principles g nerally a ptcd in the nited States of America, and for the 
design, implem ntati 11, and maintenan e of internal control rel ant to the preparali n and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered jn the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fina11cial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
my opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with general ly accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, I: 

❖ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
❖ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

❖ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

❖ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

❖ Conclude whether, in my judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

1 am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that I identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Requited 
Supplementary Information, which includes the Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule 
of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset), the Schedule of Contributions to the Employee Pension 
Plan, and the Changes in Total Liability and Relate Ratios be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. J have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the info1mation 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic 
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financial statements, and other knowledge J obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary lnforma.tion 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financiaJ statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The supplementary information section, as listed in the 
table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the 
supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financiaJ 
statements as a whole. 

Other lnformaJioll - Introductory Section 

Management is responsible for the Introductory Section included in the annual report. The Introductory 
Section, as listed in the table of contents, does not include the bas ic financia l statements and my auditor's 
report thereon. My opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the Introductory Section, and 
I do not express an opinion or any other assurance thereon. 

ln connection with my audit of the basic financial statements, my responsibility is to read the Introductory 
Section and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the Introductory Section and basic 
financial statements, or the lnlroductory Section otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 
the work performed, I conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the Introductory Section 
exists, I am required to describe it in my report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Sta11dards 

r n accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated November 17, 
2023, on my consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. and the results of that testing. and not Lo provide an opin ion on the effoctiveness 
of the City's internal' control over financial reporting or on compliance. T hal report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City·s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

November 17, 2023 
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CITY OF HOHENW ALO, TENNESSEE 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Hohenwald, Tennessee (the City) we offer readers of the City·s 
financial statements I.his narrative overview and analysis of the financial activitfos of the City for 
Lhe fiscal year ended June 30. 2023. The analysis focuses on significant financial position. budget 
changes and variances from the budget, and specific issues related to funds and the economic 
factors affecting the City. Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) focuses on current 
year activities and resulting changes. 

Financial Highlights: 

The assets of the City of Hohenwald exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal 
year by $25.854,248. Of this amount. $6,377,494 (unrestricted Net Position) rnay be used to meet 
the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Tbe government's total Net 
Position increased by $370,914 primarily due to increases in capital contribution revenues and a 
growing local economy producing increased sales tax revenues. Expenses were $630,650 higher 
than in the prior year primarily due to higher natural gas purchases and increased maintenance and 
repair costs. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reporled ending fund 
balances of $3,681,430, an increase of $48,782 in comparison to the prior year. The City's 
governmental funds had capital asset purchases of $331,556. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $3,264,480 
or approximately 71 % of the total general fund expenditures. 

The City's total debt decreased by $783,110 as the Town paid all its debts on schedule. 

Overview of the FinanciaJ Statements: 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Hohenwald's 
basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) 
government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers 
with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The 
Statement of Net Position presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as Net Position. Over time, increases or decreases in Net 
Position may serve as a usefuJ indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving 
or deteriorating. 
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The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's Net Position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in Net Position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that wil l only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected tax), Both of the government-wide financial 
statements distinguish funclions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other :functions that are intended to 
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user foes and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental aclivities of the City of Hohenwald include general government, 
personnel, finance, patks, planning, police, fire, disposal service, streets and public works. The 
government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this report. 

A Fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated from specific activities or objectives. The City of Hohenwald, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. Governmental Funds are funds used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the govemmentftwide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statetnenls, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances 
of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund stalemenl of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the funds all of which are considered to be major 
funds. 

The City of Hohenwald adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this 
budget. The basic financial statements can be found on pages 14-20 of this report. The notes 
provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found 
on pages 28-50 of this report. 
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Financial Analysis of the FinanciaJ Statements -- Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, Net Position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City of Hohenwald, assets exceeded liabilities by $25,854,248 at the 
close of the most recent fiscal year. 

By far the latgest portion of the City's assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure) less any related debt use to acquire those 
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in 
its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that U1e resources needed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. 

City of Hohenwald's Net Position - 2022 

Governmental 
Activities 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows: 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

$5,870,762 
5.501.797 

j 1,372,559 

588,866 

57,600 
847,178 
904.778 

2,313,273 

5,444,197 
302,648 

2,996529 
$ 8,743,374 

6 

Business -Type 
Activities 

4,074,121 
21.523,154 
25,597,275 

317,082 

8,286,234 
351,179 

8,637,413 

536,984 

13,399,604 
446,312 

2.894,044 
16,739,960 



City of HohenwaJd's Net Position - 2023 

Governmental 
Activities 

Current artd other assets 
Capital assets 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows 

Long-tenn liabilities outstanding 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows: 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

$ 5,736.267 
5.500.588 

11,236,855 

657,811 

485,780 
234,206 
719.986 

1,961,534 

5,461,688 
353,467 

3,397,99l 
$ 9,213,146 

Business -Type 
Activities 

3,165.779 
21.020.739 
24,186,518 

354,205 

7,503,557 
361,753 

7,865,310 

34,31 1 

13,661,599 

2.979.503 
16,641,102 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 
The focus of the City of Hohenwald's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows and balances of resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 
financing requirements in particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure to a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City· s. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $3,264,480. As a measure of the general fund's 
liquidil)'. it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total 
fimd expendittu-es. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 71 % of total general fund 
expenditures. 

Business-Type Activities 

The Business-type funds Net Position decreased by $98,858 due to higher repair and maintenance 
and supply expenses than expected. 
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Comparison of revenues and expenses 2022 and 2023 

2023 2022 Variance 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 858,401 848,376 10,025 
Sales taxes 2,198,197 2,0241550 173,647 
Local tax revenue 525,493 534,387 (8,894) 
Income and excise taxes 48,480 36,353 12,127 
Miscellaneous 312,739 186,179 126,560 
Charges for services 5,914,355 6,093,235 (178,880) 
Operating contributions 183,373 336,672 (153,299) 
Capital contributions 229,440 0 229,440 

Total Revenues $10,270,478 $10,059,752 $210,726 

Expenses: 
General government 667,653 660,829 6,824 
Police department 1,631 ,968 1,430,963 201,005 
Fire department 352,561 328,680 23,881 
Animal control 6,347 6,952 (605) 
Public works 540,940 461.431 79,509 
Cemetery 15,092 13,827 1,265 
Parks 49,367 45,352 4,015 
Economic development 116,418 128,527 (12,109) 
Emergency services 456,777 364,377 92,400 
Golf Course 353,530 250,209 103,321 
Drug fund expenses 9,223 12,095 (2 ,872) 
Highway and streets 81 ,721 65,230 16,491 
Water and Sewer Fund 3,177,806 3,171 ,874 5,932 
Natural Gas 1,999,089 1,899,500 99,589 
Solid Waste 441.072 429,068 12,004 

Total Expenses $9,899,564 $9,268,914 $630,650 

Change in Net Position 370,914 790,838 (419,924) 
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Governmental Budgetary Highlights 
The City atnended some of its departmental budgets during the year. See pages 21-27 for an 
analysis of the budgets. Amendments were made to the budget during the year to reflect the 
additional expenditures as directed by the Board. 

Capital Assets 
The City of Hohenwald's investment in capital assets from its governmental activities at June 30, 
2023, amounts to $5,500,588 (net of accumulated depreciation) and its business-type activities 
amounts to $21,020,739. This investment in capital assets is in land, buildings, improvements, 
machinery and equipment. The total increase in the City's invesunent in capital assets for the 
current fiscal year was 831,229. 

City ofHohenwald's Capital Assets - 2022 

Land, buildings and improvement 
Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Net Capital Assets 

City of Hohenwald's Capital Assets - 2023 

Land, buildings and improvement 
Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Net Capital Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$6,887,817 
3,056.402 
(4,442,422) 

$5,501,797 

Governmental 
Activities 

$6,887,817 
3.387,958 
(4,775,187) 

$ 5.500.588 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 32,513,548 
3,177,972 

(14,168,366) 
$ 2L523J54 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 32,846,270 
3,344.923 

(15,170,454) 
$21,020,739 

Additional information on the City ofHohenwald's capital assets can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements section of this report. 

Long-term Debt 

The City has total debt of $7,844,920 of which $38,900 is general obligation debt for a sanitation 
truck and $446,880 in landfill post-closure costs, $6,783,640 is debt of the Water and Sewer Utility 
system. and $575,500 is debt for the Natural Gas system. During U1c year, the City paid $18,700 
to reduce governmental debt, $722,338 to reduce Waler and Sewer debt. and $42,072 to reduce 
Natural Gas debt. All debts are being are paid as scheduled. 

Additional information on the City of HohenwaJd's long-term debt can be found in the notes to 
the financial statements section of this report 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates 

In the 2023-2024 budget, General fund revenues and user charges are budgeted to increase from 
the 2022-2023 budget year primarily due to increases in user charges and local revenues. The 
City's budget bas benefited by an expanding commercial and retail base producing increased local 
sales tax receipts. Expenses are expected to remain stable during the 2023-2024 fiscal year. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Hohenwald, 
Tennessee's finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to: 

Kyle Hamm 
City of Hohenwald 
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BASIC FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 



Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables 

Pre paid assets 

w ,enlory 

Capftal assets not being depreoiated 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciaUon 

Total Assets 

Deferred Oulltows of Resources: 
Deferred outflows ol resources - OPEB 
Deferred outflows of reaources - penslon 

Total Deferred Outflows ol Resources 

Ltabllltles, Deferred Inflows and Net Position 

LlablliUes; 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Total OPEB Llab~lty 
Net pension liability 

long-term llabill ties: 
Post closure care cost 
Premium on Long-term debt 
Due within one year 
Due In more than one year 

Tola! Llabllitles 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Deferred Inflows of resources - property lax 
Deferred Inflows of reSQUrces - unspent graiit funds 
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB 
Deferred inflows of resource$ - pensfon 

Total Deferred 1nffows of Resources 

NetPosttlon; 
Net investment In Capital Asst:ls 
Restricted - Siate street aid fund 
Reslticted - Drug ftJnd 
Restricted • Solid Waste fur,d 
Unrestricted 

Total Nat Posltjon 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Net Position• 

June JO, 2023 

GovemmenlaJ 
Activities 

4,502,210 

1.198,158 

35,899 

0 

856,582 

4,644,006 

11,236,855 

0 
a57 a,, 
657 ,611 

39,678 
152,680 

0 
41 ,848 

446,880 
0 

19,200 
19 700 

719 985 

766,446 
1,131 ,368 

0 
63720 

1,1161 ,534 

5,461 ,688 
173,644 
-40, 199 

139,630 
3,397,991 
9 2.13. !46 

See accompanying notes to financial &latements, 

11 

Bllslness---type 
Activities 

2 ,309,380 

598,508 

2S,759 

23 1,132 

199,184 

20,821 ,555 

24,186,518 

0 
354,205 
354.205 

232,295 
106,925 

0 
22,533 

0 
144,417 
77S,778 

6,S79,362 
7,865,310 

0 
0 
0 

34 1l11 
}4,311 

13,661,599 
0 
0 
0 

~979,503 
16.641 , 102 

Total 

6 ,811 ,590 

1,796,666 

62,65/J 

231,132 

1,055,766 

25 ,465,561 

35.423.373 

0 
1,012,016 
1,012.016 

271,973 
259,605 

0 
64,381 

446,880 
114.417 
798,978 

6,599,062 
8,585,296 

766,446 
1,131,368 

0 
98,031 

1,995 845 

19,123,287 
173,644 

40,193 
139,630 

6 ,377.494 
25,854124B 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Slate men I of Acllviti•• 

For the Year Endod June 30, 2023 

Nel (Expenses) Revenue and 
Program Revenuas Qb~gges ln N el PoslliQn 

Operaung Capital 
F unclfon/Proqrams Chergas for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business. Type 

~ Services Q<>nllibulions Co□l!illuti;!~ ~ Actiyjtfas :To!ru 

Government AcUvltles: 
General government 667,653 50,169 37,229 173,4'40 (406,615) 0 (406,815) 
Ponce departmant 1,631 ,966 9,343 12,000 0 (1 ,610,625) 0 (1.e10,62S) 
f'iro department 352,561 0 0 0 (352,561) 0 (352,551) 
Animal oon\ro\ 6,347 0 0 0 (6,347) 0 (6,347) 
Public works !,40,940 0 0 a (540,910) 0 (540,940) 
Cemetery 15,092 6.400 0 0 (e.692) 0 (8,692) 
Parks 49,367 0 0 a (49,36?) 0 (1'.1.367) 
Economic devolopment 116,418 0 0 0 P 16,416) 0 (116,418) 
Emergency servfce.. 45'3,777 196,000 0 0 (258.TTT) 0 (25B,m) 
Golf Course 353,530 175,149 0 0 p78,361) 0 (178,381) 
Solid Waste fund 441 ,072 437,111 0 0 (3,961) 0 (3,961) 
Drug fund 9,223 19,875 0 0 10,652 0 10,652 
Highway and streo1• 81 721 0 \ 34 1~4 ti 52,423 0 52.423 

Tolal Govemmenlal Ac:!ivlfles .417~ 669 89li.()47 1& .313 173 440 p14s9.aosi 0 l3~69,ao9J 

BU~lness -type AeliviUe, : 
Water and Sewer Fund 3,177,606 J ,100,m 0 0 0 (77 ,029) (77,029) 
NatiJral gas fund 1,999 ,01!9 1,917.531 0 56000 0 (25 556) !25,558! 

Tolal Busim,ss Type Ac!iviHes 5,1?(;,895 5,018,J0S 0 58,000 0 (102,587) (102,587) 

Tolal .9 8~9,564 5,914 355 183,373 229 440 (3,469,609) {102,587) (3,572,396} 

Geoen,I Revenues; 
Property !axes 723,773 a 723,773 
Public ul/111)' Ines 134,628 0 134,628 
Sales taxeo 2,1!18,197 0 2,198,197 
Beer and liquor taxes 322,960 0 322,960 
F ranghlse laxes 40,772 0 40,772 
Business taxes 161,761 0 161 ,761 
State income and wtclse taxes 48.480 0 46.480 
Sele o, a&sets 2,888 3,725 S-,613 
rnteres1 income 37.250 4 37 ,2~ 
Other 268,872 0 268,672 

Total general revenues 3,939,581 3,729 3,943,310 

Coan9es in Ne! F'osi!Jon 469 772 (98,868) 370914 

Nel F'osl!lon - beginning of year 6,743,374 16,739,960 25.463,334 

Net pos1!lon - ending of yea, 9,213,146 16,641 ,102 25,854,248 

See accompanying notl!l> to financial slatem·ents-
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CITY OF HOH E WALD, TENNESSEE 

Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2023 

General State Streel Drug Solid Waste 
Fund Aid Fund Fund Fund Total 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $4,224,056 $156,91 I U,193 $8 1,050 4,502,2 10 

Accounts receivable: 
Property taxes receivable 836,099 0 0 0 836,099 
Customers 1,296 0 0 64,492 1 65,788 
Other govemrnents 274,484 21,787 0 0 296,271 

l, I I 1,879 21.787 0 64,492 1,198,158 

Prepaid assets 33,003 0 0 2,896 35,899 

Tota! Assets ,368,938 $178.698 110, J 3 $148,438 $5,736,267 

Ljubililics, Doforred Ji10ow of Resources nnd l·'und Balanue 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $30,833 5,054 0 3,791 39,678 
Accrued expenses 42,675 0 0 t 017 47,692 

Total Liabilities 73,508 5,054 0 8,808 87,370 

Defe1ted lnOow of Resources: 
Defe.rred - unspent grant funds 1, )31 ,368 0 0 0 1,131,368 
Deferred current property taxes 766,446 0 0 0 766,446 
Deferred deliquent property taxes 69,653 0 0 0 69,653 

Total Defe1ted inflow of Resources 1,967,467 0 0 0 1,967,467 

Fund Balance: 
Assigned - DARE program 30,480 0 u 0 3◊,480 
Non-spendable 33,003 0 0 () 33,003 
Unassigned 3,264,480 0 I) 0 3,264,480 
Restricted 0 73,644 -10.19~ 139,630 353,467 

Total Fund Balance 3,3 27,963 173,644 40, l 3 139,630 3,681.430 

Tote.I Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balance $5,368,938 $178,698 $40, 193 $148.438 $5, 736,267 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Positlon 
of Governmental Activities 

June 30, 2023 

Amounts reported for fund balance • total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement of net 
position are different because: 

Capital assets used In governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore. are not reported in the governmental funds 

Other long term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures 
and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds 

Pension related accounts - governmental funds to not record these post-benefit 
obligations 
Nelpenslon liability 
Deferred outflow - pension 
Deferred inflow - pension 

OPEB related accounts - governmental funds to not record these past-benefit 
obllgaUons 
Total OPEB liabi)ity 
Deferred outflow - OPEB 
Deferred. inflow - OPEB 

Long-term liabllilies. lncludlng bonds payable are not due and payable in the 
current period and therefore are not recorded in the funds 
Accrued vacation expense 
Post closure care costs 
Bonds payable 

Net Posltion of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements, 
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s 3,681 .430 

5,500,588 

69,653 

(41 .848) 
657,811 
(63,720) 

0 
0 
0 

(104,988) 
(446,880) 
13a.soo1 

s 9,213,146 



CIT\' OF KOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

St~tc:ment of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Ba.lanc.e 
GovcrnmenUII Funds 

For the Year E:ncJed June 30, 2023 

Tot:11 
General State Streel Drug Solid Wa5tt GovernmentaJ 

Fund Aid fund F11nd Elm!!_ Funds 

Revenues: 
Taxes 3,091 ,523 0 0 0 J,091,S23 
Jntergovernmcnral 731 ,208 127,424 0 0 858,632 
Fines and fees 439,06 1 0 19,875 437,1 l l 896,047 
Miscellaneous 343,J.U 0 0 2,888 346,239 

Total revenues s~.ao5.M3 S 127.--12.lt Slll,875 $439,999 SS,192,441 

Expenditures: 
Gcnernl governmen1 1,004,239 0 0 0 1,004,239 
Pol ice department 1,557,06:l 0 0 0 1,557,063 
Fi re department 287,911 0 0 0 2-87,911 
Animal control .S,927 0 0 0 5,927 
Public works 443.433 0 0 0 443,433 
Cemetery IS,092 0 0 0 IS,092 
Golf Course 339,749 0 0 0 339,749 
Parks 49,01.S 0 0 0 49,015 
Economic development 116,418 0 0 0 116,418 
Emergency services 456.777 0 0 0 456,777 
Drug fund expenses 0 0 9.223 0 9,223 
Solid Waste fund 0 0 0 425,537 42S,537 
Highway and streeis 0 81 ,72) 0 0 81,721 

C~pital outlay: 
General government 34,310 0 i> 0 34,3)0 
Police deportment 87.015 0 0 0 87,015 
Fire department 35,769 0 0 0 35,769 
Public work,; 133,143 0 0 0 133,143 
Golf Course 41,3 19 0 0 0 41,319 

Debt ~ctvicc: 
Principal 0 0 0 )8,700 18,700 
lnlerest 0 0 0 L98 1,298 

Toll'll expenditures 4-,607. 180 Sftl .7:?l 223 S~45,S3S 5,1,IJ,659 

Excess (deficiency) ofTevenues 
over expenditures 2,1\37) ,IS.703 I 0,fiS-? (S.S.36) 48,782 

Fund baJance, beginning of }'ear 3,330,000 127,941 19,541 145,166 3,632,648 

Fund balance, end of year 3X17.963 $173.li•H S~0.193 $1.39,630 $3,681,430 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds; 

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement of net 
position are different because: 

Govemmenlal runds report capital outlays as expenditures. However. in the slalement 
or activltles the cost of those assets Is atlocaled over their estrmated useful tlves and 
reported as depredation expense. 

Ac:quisllion of capital assets 
Depreciation expense 

Liabilities not reported in the governmental fund - change in accrued vacation liabllily 

Liabilities not reported in the governmental fund -- change in pensron plan accrual 

Liabllilies not reported ln the govemmen.tal fund -- change in post retirement benefits liab1tity 

Revenues tn the statement of activitles that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Expenses reported in the statemenl of actlVlties that do not require the use of current 
financial resources are not reported as expenditures In the governmental funds 

Debt principal payments 

Change in Nel Position of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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48,782 

331 ,556 
(332,765) 

9,665 

39,756 

338,425 

15.653 

18.700 

469,772 



CTTV OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Stattment of Net Position 

Enterprise Funds 

,June 30, 2023 

Waterand Natural Gas 
Sewer Fund Fund Total 

A9.cts i\nd e1urred UUtt}m,i 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $8 213 $2,301 ,167 2,309,380 
Customer accounts receivable, net of allowanoe 474,425 124,083 598,508 
Prepaid assets 21 ,517 5,242 26,759 
Inventory 105,859 125,273 231,132 

Total Current Assets 610,014 2,555,765 3, 165,779 

Capital Assets: 
Capita! assets in service 33,012,593 3,178,600 36, 191,193 
Less acc1miulated depreciation ( 13,188.022) / 1.982,•132) W,170.454l 
Total Capital Assets. Net 19.824,5 1 1,196, 168 21 ,020,739 

Total Assets :!0.-134.585 $3,751.933 $24,186,518 

Deferred Outflow of Resources : 
Deferred outflow of resources - OPEB 0 0 0 
Deferred outflow of resouroes - pension 212,523 141,682 . 354,205 

Total Deferred Outflows $212,523 $141,682 $354,205 

Liabil itic : 
Accounts payable 198,780 33,515 232,295 
Accrued expenses 64,923 42,002 106,925 
Net OPEB Liability 0 0 0 
Net pension !iabiliity 13.520 9,013 22,533 
Premium on Long-tem1 debt 144,417 0 144,417 
Long-term debt due within one year 735.878 43 900 779.778 
Long-term debt due ln more than one year 6,047,761 53 1.600 6,579.362 

Total Liabilities 7,205,280 660.030 7 65. IO 

Deferred lnllow of Resources: 

Deferred inflow of resources - OPEB 0 0 0 
Deferred in now of resources - pension 20,587 13,724 34,31 ] 

Total Deferred [nflows 20,587 13.724 34.311 

Net PositJoo: 
Net investmen1 in capital assets 13,040,931 620,668 13,661,599 
lJ orcstri ctcd 380.310 2.59\1.193 2,979,503 

Total Net Position 13,421,241 3,219,861 16.6-11,!02 

The notes accompanying the financial tll(cments arc an integral part of these finru,cial statements. 
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Operating Revenues: 
Service fees 
Tap and connection fees 
Other income 

'Total Opernting Revenues 

Operating Expense.~; 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Training and travel 
Fees and memberships 
Utilities 
Profe sional services 
Natural gas purchased 
Insurance 
Repair and maintenance 
Supplies 
Office expense 
Vehicle expense 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 

Total Operatiog El{penses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest income 
Gain/(loss) on sale of assets 
Interest expense 

CITY OF HOllENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, E.ipen~es 
and Changes in Net Po ition 

Enterprise Funds 

For the Year Ended June JO, 2023 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

$2,975,463 
100,113 
25,201 

3, 100,777 

822,936 
55,562 

160,885 
1,530 

15,789 
322,035 

46,889 
0 

78,103 
182,664 
406,643 

9,676 
34,629 
2,812 

893,656 
3,033,809 

66,968 

4 
3,725 

(143,997) 

Natural Gas 
Fund 

$1,873,296 
42,455 

1,780 
1,917,531 

439,554 
J0,500 
61,559 

506 
7, 504 

34,509 
27,9?6 

1,018,278 
17,692 
51,049 

141,091 
8,369 

19,381 
2,636 

114,732 
J,98,l,336 

63,805) 

0 
0 

(17 753) 
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) l 140,268) (17,753) 

Capital contributions 0 56,000 

Net change tn position (73,300) (25,558) 

Net Position, July I, 2022 IJ,494,5111 3,245.419 

Net Position., June 30, 2023 $13,421,241 $3,219,861 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial starement~. 
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Total 

$4,848,759 
142, S68 
26,981 

5,018,308 

1.262,490 
86,062 

228,444 
2,036 

23,293 
356,544 

74,865 
1,018,278 

95,795 
233,713 
547,734 

18,045 
54,010 

5,448 
l,008l38S 
5,015,145 

3, 163 

.1 
J.72-

(161 ,750) 
(158,021) 

56.000 

(98,858) 

16,739,960 

$16,641,102 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Enterprise Fund Types 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employees 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Capital contributions 
Gain/Joss on sale of assets 
Interest paid 
Repayment ot debt 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Financing ActiVlties 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest received 

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Net Change in Cash 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2022 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2023 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Change in assets (increase) decrease: 

Receivables 
Inventory 
Prepaid assets 
Deferred outflows 
Net pension asset 

Change in liabilities increase (decrease): 
Total OPEB liability 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Premium on long-term debt 
Net pension liability 
Deferred inflows 

Net Cash Provl ded (Used) by Operating Activities 

Water and Natural 
Sewer Fund Gas Fund 

3,093,910 1,922,360 
(1 i101 1392) (1 ,369,913} 
(1 ,039,383) {537.613) 

953,136 14.834 

(505,297) (676) 
0 56,000 

3,725 0 
(143,997) (17,753) 
(722,338), (42,072) 

(1,367.907) (4,501) 

4 0 
4 0 

(414,768) 10,333 

422,981 2,290,834 

8,21.3 2,301 ,167 

66,968 (63,805) 

893,656 114,732 

(6,867) 4,829 
(16,510) 89,937 

(568) (382) 
(22,274) (14,849) 
260,081 173,387 

(71,904) (47,936) 
146,695 (59,342) 

10,208 10,320 
(18,267) 0 
13,520 9,013 

{301 ,603) (201 ,070) 
953,135 14.834 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Total 

5,016,270 
(2,471 ,305) 
(1 ,576;996) 

967,969 

(505,973) 
56,000 

3,725 
(161 ,750} 
(764.410) 

(1 ,372.408) 

4 
4 

(404,435) 

2,713,815 

2,309,380 

3,163 

1,008,388 

(2,038) 
73,427 

(950) 
(37,123) 
433,468 

(119,840) 
87,353 
20,528 

{18,267) 
22,533 

(502,673) 
967,969 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and haoges jo Fund Balance• Budget (GAAP Basi ) and Actual 

General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Original Final 
Budget Budeet Actual 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property tmces $749,000 $749,000 $723,773 
Public utility taxes 94,000 94,000 90,273 
Local sales tax 1,568,000 1,568,000 1,753,659 
Local beer and liquor tax 272,500 272,500 302,083 
Mixed drink tax 9,000 9,000 19,202 
franchise taxes 49,000 49,000 40,772 
Business taxes 65,000 65,000 161 ,761 

Total Taxes __ 8(1 • ()(I 2,1!06,SOu J ,091 ,523 

Intergovernmental : 
TVA in lieu 44,000 44,000 44,355 
Slate sales tax 419,000 419,000 444,538 
State beer tax 0 0 1,675 
State income tax 40,000 40,000 0 
State special petrolewn tax 7,000 7,000 6,720 
Grants 570,684 1,162,684 173,440 
State supplernent 12,800 12,800 12,000 
Corporate excise tax 30,000 30,000 -18,480 

Total In tergovernmental Revenue 1.123.~fl<l 1,7 I '.484 731,208 

Fines and fees : 
Building permits 10,000 10000 23,480 
Police fines 12,200 12,200 9,343 
Golf course revenues 146,500 146,500 175 149 
Dispatcher rcimbursemenl 237,000 237,000 198,000 
Cemetery 1,200 1,200 6,400 
Other fines and fees 1.100 1, 100 26,689 

Total Fines and Fees 408 000 408,000 439,061 

Miscellaneous: 
Miscellaneuus 6,900 6,900 3,696 
Economic development 3,000 3,000 0 
Insunmce recoveries 3,000 3,000 44,412 
Reimbursements 205,144 205,)44 220,764 
Donations 15,000 15.000 37,229 
Sale of assets 10,000 10,000 0 
Interest inoome 10.000 10.000 37,250 

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 253.044 253.044 343,351 

Total Revenues 4,59l.028 5, 183,028 1,605,1 3 

The notes accompanying the financial statements arc an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Ncgative2 

(25,227) 
(3,727) 

185,659 
29,583 
10,202 
(8,228) 
96.761 

285.023 

355 
25,538 

1,675 
(40,000) 

(280) 
(989,244) 

(800) 
18.480 

(9&4.'276) 

13,480 
(2,857) 
28,649 

(39,000) 
5,200 

25.589 
31.061 

(3,204) 
(3,000) 
41 ,412 
15,620 
22,229 

(I 0,000) 
27.250 
90,307 

577,88 ) 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, E~pemlilurc,; 
and Changr.s in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP B;isis) and Actual, Continued 

Expenditures: 
Gencrol Govemmenl: 

Current: 
Salaries 
Payroll tax~s 
Employee benefits 
Uri(i\ies 
Professional services 
Office.supplies 
Supplies 
Donations 
Travel and training 
Insurance 
Du~s and subscriptions 
Vehicle expenses 
Repair and maintenance 
Gram expenses 
Miscellaneous 

Capital ou1lay 
To1al General Government 

Public Safety· 
Police Department 
Current 

Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Training 
Dues and subsariptions 
Util ities 
Insurance 
Vehicle e1<pense 
Repair&. moin1enance 
Supplies-
Professional services 
Miscel laneou~ 

Capita l outlay 
To1al Police Dcpan111ent 

Fire Dcpartmcnl: 
Current: 

Salaries and volunteer firem~" 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Traini ng and travel 
Repair and maintenn.nce 
Supplies 
Uniforms 
Utilities 
Insurance 
Vehicle expenses 
Miscel laneous 

Capllol outlay 
Total Fire Dcpanment 

Tolnl Public Safety 

Conilnued on next p3ge 

General Fu nd 

For the Year Ended June JO, 2023 

Original 
8ud1;ct 

3051000 
23,33) 

136,200 
58,000 
86,000 
15,300 
)J,700 
12,000 
7,000 

.30,000 
24,500 
10,000 
22,250 

0 
15,250 

7&8,533 
JS0,000 
938,533 

H74,0IICI 
M1,HM 

~IM,Clilll 
8,000 
1,900 
8,500 

41 ,000 
25,000 

8,200 
•!•!, so 
11,200 
5,750 

l,l\19,261 
5,000 

1,SO. 61 

149,000 
8,568 

53, 100 
1,000 

10,250 
19,750 
15,000 
12.3 11 
12,000 
6,500 

0 
288,479 

2,500 
290.979 

1,795,,,iu 

Final 
Bttdget 

305,000 
23,333 

136,200 
58,000 
86,000 
15,300 
33,700 
12,000 
7,000 

30,000 
24,500 
10,000 
22,250 

200,000 
25,250 

988,533 
!S0.000 

1,138.533 

874,000 
66,861 

404,000 
R,000 
1,900 
8,500 

41,000 
:25,000 

8,200 
44,850 
11,200 
5,750 

1,499,261 
130,000 

l,629,16l 

149,000 
8,.568 

53, 100 
2,000 

10,250 
19,750 
IS,000 
12,311 
12,000 
6,500 

0 
288,479 

52,500 
340,979 

I. 70.240 

Actual 

286,129 
17,546 

148,244 
60,670 
84,807 
20,052 
42,586 
14,222 
21,453 
29)19 
38,047 
34,5.24 
31 , 158 

161,467 
14 ,015 

1,004,2)9 

J4.JJ0 
l.0J8,549 

941,220 
65,158 

366,566 
7,522 
7,443 

21,6'79 
42,978 
36,42:2 
19,558 
42,937 

1,606 
3,974 

1,557.063 
87,015 

1,644,078 

152,459 
1 1,025 
47,140 
2,608 

12,052 
1,996 

23,717 
17,290 
14,949 
4,675 

0 
287,911 

35,769 
323,680 

1.967.758 

The notes 11tcompanyi11g the finuncin l statements ure an integral part of the5e financial stmmcnls 
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Variance wirh 
Final Budget 

Positive 
r cgauve) 

18,871 
5,787 

(12,044) 
(2,670) 

1,193 
(4,752) 
(8,886) 
(2,222) 

(14,453) 
681 

( 13,547) 
(24.514) 

(8,908) 
38,533 
11,235 

(15,706) 
115,690 
99,984 

(67,220) 
1,703 

37,434 
478 

(5,543) 
(13J79) 

(1,978) 
(11,422) 
(11,358) 

1,913 
9,594 
1,776 

(57,802) 
42.985 

(14,817) 

(3,459) 
(2,457) 
5,960 
(608) 

(1,802) 
17,754 
(8,7 17) 
(4,979) 
(2,949) 
1,825 

0 
568 

16,731 
17,299 

2,482 



ClT OF HOllE WALD, T ENNESSEE 

Statement or Revenues-, Expcoditu res 
a.nd Changes h1 Fund Bah111ce - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual, Continulld 

An imal Control 
Salary and benefits 
Maintenance and supplies 

Capital outlay 
Total Animal Cuntrol 

Public Works: 
Salaries 
Pa yro II laxes 
Employee. bencfi1s 
Repair and maintenanuc 
VehJcle eKpense 
Mulerials and supplies 
Utilities 
Professional services 
Miscellaneous 

Capirnl outlay 
Total Public Works 

Cemetery 
Repair and maintenance 

Capital outlay 
Total Cemetery 

Golf Course: 
Salaries 
Payroll laxes 
Employee benefits 
U1ilities 
Repnir and maintcnnace 
Tournament Prizes 
Yeh icle eJCpense 
[nsurano.e 
Ma1erials and supplies 
Professional services 
Miscellaneous 

Capital outlay 
Toca) Golf Course 

General Fund 

for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Original 
Budg1i1 

14,742 
4100 

18,842 
0 

18.342 

181 ,000 
13,847 
76,855 
46,500 
28,000 
25,500 
10,000 

0 
550 

382.252 
575,000 
957,252 

20,100 
20, 100 

0 
20, 100 

127,000 
9,716 

19,850 
15,600 
8,000 
·9,000 
8,300 
1.200 

34,300 
0 

2,000 
264,966 
25,000 

Final 
Budget 

14,742 
4,100 

18,842 
0 

18.s.12 

181,000 
13,847 
76.855 
46,500 
28,000 
25,500 
10,000 

0 
550 

382,252 
575,000 
957,252 

20,100 
20.100 

0 
20, 100 

1271000 
9,716 

19,850 
15,600 
]8,000 
9,000 
8,300 
1,200 

34,300 
0 

2,000 
264,966 
150,000 
414,966 

Actual 

334 
5,593 
5,927 

0 
5,927 

184,989 
12,579 
79,546 
48,521 
42,925 
50,233 

7,971 
14,675 

1,994 
443,433 
133,143 
576,576 

15.092 
15,092 

0 
15,092 

138,524 
10,144 
23,446 
21,586 
68,722 

9,606 
6,507 
1,869 

55, 101 
3,750 

494 
339,749 
4),319 

The notes occorup1tnying the finoncinl statements arc llll integrol part of these financial statem1mls. 
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Variance with 
flinul Budget 

Positive 
(, eg tivcJ 

14,408 
(1 ,493) 
12,915 

0 
12,915 

(3,989) 
1,268 

(2,691) 
(2,021 ) 

(14,925) 
(24,733) 

1 ,029 
(14,675) 
11,-1-U J 

(61,181) 
441 ,857 
380,676 

5,008 
5,008 

0 
5,008 

( ll,,524) 
(428) 

(3,596) 
(5,986) 

(30,722) 
(606) 

1,793 
(669) 

(20,801) 
(3,750) 
1,506 

(74,783) 
108,681 
33, 898 



CITY OF JIOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Slatement of Revenues, E:tpenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual, Continued 

Parks and Recreation: 
Maintenance and supplies 
Donation 

Capital outlay 
Total Parks and Recreation 

Economic dcvelopmenr: 
Salaries 
P~yroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Site development 
Training and travel 
Materials and suppl ies 
Utilities 
Miscellaneous 

Debt scrVice 
Total l::conomic development 

Emergency Services: 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Memberships 
Supplies 

Capital outlay 
Total Emergency Services 

Total Ex))cnditures 

Excess (deficiehcy) of Revenues 
ovef Expendilures 

Fund Balance, July I, 2022 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2023 

General Fund 

For tl1e Year Ended .June 311, 2023 

Original Final 
Budger 13ud..!l!el ;\CLLlal 

0 0 ,01 . 
45,000 45.000 5,000 
45,000 45,000 49.01 

0 5,000 0 
45,000 50,000 49.01 

44.000 44,000 31.7 3 
3,366 3,366 1. 130 

15,880 l:5,880 24.76 
18,000 18,000 JJ ,00 
3,500 3,500 () 

26,300 38,300 •IJ.22 
480 480 U 7J 

0 0 0 
111,526 123,526 11 .418 

0 0 0 
111 ,526 123,526 116.4 lk 

277,000 277,000 318,349 
21,191 96.191 22,109 

105,650 105.650 113,105 
7,200 7,200 0 
3,530 J,530 3.214 

414,571 489,571 -i-6,777 

0 0 0 
414.57 1 489.571 -I u 777 

4,591.030 -, l8J,0_,0 •1.607. 180 

(2) (2} (2,037) 

3,330,000 3.JJ 0,000 J.330,000 

3.327,963 

Th~ notes accompanying· lhc financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
cizatiVCI 

(4,015) 
0 

(4.015) 
5,000 

985 

12.'277 
1,236 

t8,886) 
4,994 
3,500 

(4.922) 
(1 ,091 ) 

0 
1, 10g 

0 
7.108 

(41 ,349) 
74.082 
(7,455) 
7,200 

316 
32,794 

0 
32,794 

575.850 

(2,035) 

0 

(2,035) 



CITY OF HOH.tNWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

State Street Aid Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Vatiance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental: 

Gasoline .03 tax 20,500 20,500 18,926 (1,574) 
Gasoline l 989 tax 11 ,500 I 1,500 10,247 (1,253) 
Gasoline 2017 tax 36,000 36,000 33,074 (2,926) 
Gasoline and motor fuel 70,000 70,000 65,177 (4,823) 

Total Revenues 138,000 IJS,000 127,424 I 0,576) 

Expenditures: 
Streets: 
Street lights 138,000 138,000 81 721 56,279 
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditures 13?.000 138,000 81,721 56,279 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 0 0 45,703 45,703 

Fund Balance, July 1, 2022 127 941 127.941 127,941 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2023 $127,941 $127,941 173,644 45,703 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integra l part of these financial statements. 
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Revenues: 
Fines and Pees: 
Drug related 

Miscellaneous: 
Sale of equipment 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Supplies 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Fund Balance, July 1, 2022 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2023 

CITV OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Drug Fund 

Fol." the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Original Final 
Budget Budget 

20,000 20,000 

0 0 

20,000 20,000 

20,000 20,000 
0 0 

20,000 20,000 

0 0 

29,541 29,541 

$29,541 $29,541 

Actual 

19,875 

0 

19,875 

9,223 
0 

9,223 

10,652 

29 541 

40,1.93 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative 

(125) 

0 

(125) 

10,777 
0 

10,777 

10,652 

0 

10,652 



Revenues: 
Service fees 
Sale of assets 

Total Revenues 

Expenses: 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Fees 
Utilities 
Professional services 
Insurance 
Repair and maintenance 
Supplies 
Garbaie cans 
Vehictc expense 
Miscellaneous 

Debt service 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Fund Balance, July I, 2022 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2023 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of ~evcnues, Expenditures and 
Changes jn Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Solid Waste Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Original 
Budget 

445,000 
0 

445,000 

219,000 
16,754 

112,550 
1,000 
6,500 

12,500 
4,900 

19.798 
2,900 

17,000 
12,000 

100 
425,002 

19,998 
445,000 

D 

145,166 

$145,166 

Final 
Budget 

446 000 
0 

446,000 

219,000 
16,754 

112,5 50 
1,000 
6,500 

12,500 
4,900 

19,798 
2,900 

17,000 
13,000 

100 
426,002 

19,998 
446,000 

0 

145,166 

$145,166 

Actual 

437,111 
2,888 

439,999 

203,752 
{3,967 
99,807 

13 
7,312 
9,428 
4,691 

24,618 
8,036 

15,670 
30,238 

8,005 
425,537 

19,998 
445.535 

(5,536) 

145,166 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

(8,889) 
(2,888) 
(6,001) 

15,248 
2,787 

12,743 
987 

(812) 
3,072 

209 
{4,820) 
(5,136) 
1,330 

(17,238) 
(7,905) 

465 
0 

465 

(5,536) 

0 

($5,536) 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(1) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Hohenwald, Tennessee, was incorporated by the Private Act of the Tennessee GeneraJ 
Assembly. The City provides the following services, as authorized by its charter and duly passed 
ordinances: public safety (Police and Fire), water and sewerage, natural gas, streets, sanitation, recreations, 
public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. The accounting policies of 
the City of Hohenwald, Tennessee conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to 
governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

Reporting Entity: 
In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management follows all applicable GASB statements and has 
addressed all potential component units (traditionally separate reporting entities) for which the City may be 
fmaocially accountable and, as such, should be included vvithin the City's financial statements. The City 
(the primary government) is financially accounrablc if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's 
governing- board and (l) it is able to impose its will on the organization or(2) there is a potential for the 
organiz.ation to provide specific GnanciaJ benefit or to impose specific financiaJ bw-den on the City. 
Additionally, the primary government is required to consider other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government arc such that exclusion would cause the 
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incompl.cte. The City has no component units at 
yearend. 

The financial statements now include government-wide financial statements prepared on the accrual basis 
of accounting and the economic measurement focus for all funds. The fund financial statements present 
information for individual major funds rather than by [1.u,d type. Nonmajor funds are presented in one 
column. The reporting includes the reporting of capital assets, infrastructure and depreciation, the 
elimination of account groups, and the inclusion of management's discussion and analysis. 

The government-wide financial statements present the City's programs between business-type and 
governmental activities. 

Government -Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The Government-wide financial statements, the statement of Net Position and the statement of changes in 
Net Position, report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the 
most part, the effect of the interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Government 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately 
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(1) Sunimarv of Significant Accounting PoHcies, Continued 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are oftset by program revenues. Direct expenses are tJ10sc that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include (i) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment 
and (ii) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital rectuirernents of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
repo1ted as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and enterprise funds. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

Measw·emcnt Focus. Basis of Accounting, and rinancial Statement Presentation 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the enterprise fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund revenues are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they become both measurable 
and collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the cwTeot 
period. The government considers property taxes and most governmental revenues as available if received 
within 45 days of yea.rend. Expenditures are recorded generally when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences 
and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, state shared revenues, and interest associated with the cun ent f LSCal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrnal and so have been recogoi.zed as revenues of the current fiscal period using the 
criteria specified in the paragraph above. All other revenue items arc considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 

The government reports the following major funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating ftmd of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial tcsources of the general government except those requfred to be accounted for in another fund. 

State Street Aid Fund - The State Street Aid Fund is used to account for the operations of the state shared 
gasoline revenues. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(1) Sum.man · of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued 

Drug Fund - The Drug Fund accounts for the revenues derived from drug-related fines and the City's 
investigative and educational programs. 

Solid Waste Fund - To account for the operations of the Sanitation operations. During the year, the Town 
moved the Solid Waste Fund to a governmental fund to better reflect its operations. 

The government reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Water and Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of the Water and Sewer Fund. 

Natural Gas Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of the Natural Gas Fund. 

The Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises - where the intent of the govenung body is that the costs (including 
depreciation) of providing goods or scr ices to the general public on a contjnuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments- in-lieu taxes and other charges between the 
government's utilities and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned, 

Amounts rcpurlecl as program revenues include (i) <.:harges tu customers or applicants for goods, services, 
or privileges provided, (ii) operating grants and cona·ibutions, aod (iii) capital grants and contributions. 
General revenues include all taxes and intern.ally dedicated resources. 

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and dclive1ing goods in connection 
with a enterprise fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the various utility 
funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Utility Fund also recognize as operating revenue 
the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, aud 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non­
operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. When unrestricted funds are used, the City 
uses committed, assigned then unassigned funds. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Receivables and Payables 
Activity between funds thal a.re representative of lending/ borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of tbc fiscal year al'e refe1Ted lo as either due from/ due to other funds (i.e. the current portion of inte1-fund 
loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities 
a.re reported in the government-wide fmancia.l statements as internal balances. 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they arc not available for appropriation and are 
not expendable available resources. All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible, 
if applicable. 

Deferred Oulflows/lnilows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net posiLion that applies to a future pedod(s) and so will not be recognized as an outfiow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government has one item (pension related) that qualifies 
for reporting in this category. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for defened 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, defe1Ted inflows of resources, represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) w1til that lime. The govermnent has items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
Accordingly. the items.arc reported in the government-wide Statement ofNetPosition and the governmental 
funds balance sheet. These revenues are from the following sources: current and delinquent property truces. 
which do not meet the avaiJability criteria in governmental funds. These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. Additionally, the 
government has two items (pension related and unspent grant funds) that qualifies for reporting in this 
category. 

Net Position Flow Assumption 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and uo restricted 
resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and unrestricLed - net 
position in Lhc governmcm-wide and enterprise furn.I financial statements, a flow assumption must be made 
about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to consider 
restricted- net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of savings accounts. certificates of deposit with original 
maturities three months or less and amounts held by lhc State Local Government Investment Pool. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(1) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Property Ta-x 
The City's property tax is levied each July 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real 
and personal property located in the City's legal boundaries. All City taxes on real estate are declared to be 
a lien on such realty from January 1 of the year assessments are made. 

Assessed values are established by the State of Tennessee at the following rates of appraised market value: 

Public Utility Property 55% 
Industrial and Commercial Property 
-Real 40% 
- Pei-sonal 30% 
Farm and Residential Prope1ty 25% 

Taxes were levied at a rate of $1.13 per $100 of assessed valuation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 
Payments may be made dwing the period from July l through November 1. Current tax collections of 
$694,177 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 were approximately 91 percent of the tax levy. Delinquent 
taxes are turned over to the County for collection as required by the City's Municipal Code. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets consisting of certain 
improvements other than buildings. including roads, bridges. streets and sidewalks, and drainage systems 
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an individual cost of $2.500 
and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or 
estimated useful life in excess of three years. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued a.1 their estimated 
fair value on the date donated. The costs of normal maintenance and repaiss that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

Interest incun-ed during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is expensed when 
paid and thus not a part of the capitalized cost. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Utility Plant in Service 
Furniture and Equipment 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(1) Sum.man, of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Inventory 
f nventory of the Utility Fund is valued at cost) using the first in fu-st out method. Inventory of all the 
governmental funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption and arc recorded at cost under 
the consumption method. 

Compensated Absences 
The City has accrued a liability for unused sick and vacation pay which is earned, but not taken by City 
employees. 

Govemmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Restricted Assets 

Balance 
July 1, Addi-
2022 tions 

114,653 
56,581 1 1,925 

Retire­
ments 
9,665 

Balance 
June 30, 

2023 
104,988 
68,506 

Certain proceeds of the Enterprise Fund bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, 
are classified as restricted assets on their respective balance sheets because they are maintained in separate 
bank accounts and their use is eithet limited by applicable bond covenants or represent proceeds from bond 
issues that are restricted for use in construction. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

a. Fonnal budgets are adopted and approved by Council vote on an annual basis for the General and 
Special Revenue Funds. These budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). 

b. The City Council approves, by ordinance, total budget appropriations by department only. The 
Mayor is authorized to transfer budget amounts between line items within each department; however, any 
revisions that alter the total apptopriations of any fund must be approved by the City Council. 

c. The budget amow1ts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as amended 
during the year. 

Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that afiect the reporled amounts of assels and 
liabilities al the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts ofrevenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(1) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Pension 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, infonnation about the fiduciary net position of 
Hohenwald's parlicipaLion in the Public Employee Retirement Plan of the Tennessee Consolidated 
Retirement System (TCRS), and additions to/deductions from Hohenwald's fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they arc reported by the TCRS !or the PubHc Employee Retirement 
Plan. For this purpose, benefits (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms of the Public Employee Retirement Plan ofTCRS. [nvestments 
are reported at fair value. 

Long-term Obligations 
111 lhe government-wide financial statements, and enterprise fund types in the fund financial stalements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabiJjtics in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type actjvities, or enterprjse fund type statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and 
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds and are presented in the accompanying 
financial statements as other assets. Debt issuance costs, such as insurance costs, fees and other related costs 
are recognized as an expense. 

In the fltnd, financial statements, governmental fund types recogJ1ize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
.financing sow·ccs wbHe discounts 011 debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Debt issuance 
costs, such as insurance costs, fees and other related costs are recognized as an expense. 

Government Wide - Net Position 
Net position is a component of equity and is displayed in the following three components: 

Net Tnvestmcol in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and l'educed 
by the outstanding_ balances of any bonds that are attributable to the acquisition, construct-ion, or 
improvement of U10se assets; debt related lo unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and investments is 
excluded from the determination. 

RestTicted - Consists of net position for Which constraints a.re placed thereon by external parties, such as 
lenders, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations. and enabling legislation, including self--imposed legal 
mandates. less any rclaLcd liabilities. The restrictions are evident from the classification titles. 

Unrestricted - All other net position that does not meet the description of the above categories. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Fund Balance 
The Town implemented GASB 54 which addresses issues related to how fund balances are repolied. Fund 
balances are now reported in the following manner: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that arc (a) not in spendable form, or 
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intac1. The '·not in spendable form" criterion includes 
terms that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example: inventories, prepaid amow1ts. and long­
term notes receivable. 

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted for specific purposes 
stipulated by external resource providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may 
effectively be changed or lifted with the consent of resource providers. 

Committed Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that can only be used for the specific 
pmvoses determined by a formal action of the City's highest level of decision-making authority, the City 
Council of the City of Hohenwald, Tennessee. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the City 
taking the san1e formal action that imposed the constraint originally (for example: ordinance). 

/\ssigned Fund Balance - Tb.is classification included amounts intended to be used by the Town for specific 
purposes chat are neither restricted nor committed. The CHy Council and its designee, the Recorder, have 
tbc authority to assign amounts to be used for speci fie purposes. Assigned amounts also include all residual 
amounts in governmental funds (except negative amounts) that are not classified as nonspendablc, 
restricted, or committed. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. It is also 
used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple 
fund balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed. assigned, and 
unassigned. 

Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan- (OPEB) 
For the purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, defetTed outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to other poslomploymenl benefits, and OPEB expense, informalion about the fiduciary 
net position of the City of Hohenwald s participation in the Local Government OPEB Plan (LGOP), and 
additions to/deductions from the City of Hohenwald fiduciruy net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by the LGOP. For this purpose, benefits are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with benefit tenns of the LGOP. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(2) Cash and a b Equivalent 

The City is authorized to invest funds in Federal treasury bills and notes tat of Tenness e Local 
Government Investment Pool and financial institution demand d posit account and certificates of deposit. 
During the year, the City invested funds that were not immediately need d in certificat of depo il , saving 
accounts and investments in the State of Tennessee Local Governm nt Jnvestment Pool. The Cit ha 
depo it polici t 011runuz u todial r dit risks. All deposits with frnancial instituti ns must be se ured 
by ne f tw meth ds. On method invoJ financial institutions that pa11i ipaL in the bank collateral 
p ol administered by th stat trea tu· •. Participating banks determine the aggregate balance of their public 
fund accowit for the tate of nn sse and it political subdivisions. The amount of collateral required to 
s ur 1h s publi d posits must equal at le l 105 p rcenl f the a erage daily balance of public d posits 
held. C llateral securiti s required l be pledged b the parti ipating banks to protect their public fund 
a' ount ar pledged l the tate lreasurer on b half of rh bank collat ·ral pool. Tbe securiti s pl dged to 
protect these accounts are pledged in the aggregate rather than against each ace unl The members of the 
pool may be required by agre · m nt to pay an a essment to cov r any defici n y. nd .r this additional 
assessment agreement, public fund accounts covered by the pool are considered to be insured for purposes 
of credit risk disclosure. 

• r dcpo its with financial in ·titutions Lhat do n t participate in the bank collat ral pool, state statutes 
re4uis that all d posits be ilateralized with collal ral whose market alu is equal to 10- percent of the 
uninsw- d amow1t fU,e deposits. The collaLeraJ must be pla cd by the dcpo itory bank in an s ro ace unL 
in a second bank for Lhe benefit of the city. . he City deposit itb financial institutions are fol I insw· d 
or collat raliz d by s cmities held by U1e deposit ry bank in Lbc go rnment's name. Additionall . the 
deposit accounts are covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Coverage. 

(3) 

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2023, consist of the following: 

Other Property Customer 
Fund Go ernm nl Taxes Accounts Total 

General Fund $ 274,484 836,099 1,296 1,111,879 
Special Revenue FW1ds 21,787 64,492 86,279 
Enterprise Funds 1,821,376 1,821,376 
Less allowance for 
doubtfu.J accounts ) 

Total $ 296,27l .83 
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(4) 

A summary of changes in general capital assets as presented in the governmental activities column of the 
government- wide financial statements is as foUows: 

Balance Balance 
ul 1, 2022 Additions Disposals June 30, 2023 

Land $856,582 0 0 856,582 
Buildings 3,589,115 0 0 3,589,115 
Improvements 2,442,120 0 0 2,442,120 
Vehicles 1,486,329 139,826 0 1,626,155 
Equipment 1,570,073 191,730 0 1,761,803 

Total 9,944,219 331,556 0 10,275,775 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (4,442,422) (4,775,187) 

Net capital assets in service $5,501,,797 $5,500,588 

All assets, except land of $856,582, are being depreciated. 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows : 

General Fund: 
General government administration 
Police department 
Fire department 
Public Works 
Animal shelter 
Park 
Golf 
Solid waste 

Total 
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$ 66,913 
74,905 
64,650 
97,507 

420 
352 

13,781 
14,237 

332.765 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(4) Capital ets, Continu d 

A summary of changes in Enterprise (Water and Sewer) Fund capital assets and related accumulated 
depreciation follows: 

Balance Balance 
JuJy 1, 2022 Additions Disposals June 30, 2023 

Land and easement $119,796 0 0 119,796 
Buildings 85,014 0 0 85,014 
Utility plant 30,086,617 332,722 0 30,419,339 
Equipment 2,339!241 55.503 6,300 21388,444 

Total 32,630,668 388,225 6,300 33,012,593 

Less Accumulated Depreciation Q2,300,666) (13,188,022) 

Net capital assets in service $20,330,002 

All assets, except land and easements of $119,796 are being depreciated. Depreciation expense was 
$893,656 in 2023 , 

A summary of changes in Enterprise (Gas) Fund capital assets and related accumulated depreciation 
follows; 

Balance Balance 
July 1, 2022 Additions Disposals June 30 2023 

Land and easement $79,388 0 0 79,388 
Utility plant 2,142,733 0 0 2,142,733 
Equipment 838,731 117,748 0 956,479 

Total 3,060,852 117,748 0 3,178,600 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,867,700) (1,982,432) 

Net capital assets in service $1,196,168 

All assets, except land of $79,388~ are being depreciated. Depreciation expense was $114,732 in 2023. 

38 



CITY OF HOHENW ALO, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(5) Long-Term De t Payable and Other Obli.. • 

Direct Borrowings 

The following schedule reflects the changes in long-term debt, as shown for governmental activities during 
the fiscal year 2023. 

Balance Balance Due Within 
Bonds Payable: July 1. 2022 Additions Retirements June 30 2023 One Year 

co - Solid Waste 57,600 0 18 700 38 900 19.200 

Total 57,600 0 18 700 38.900 19,200 

The following schedule reflects the changes in long-term debt, as shown in the Enterprise (Water and Sewer) 
Fund during the fiscal year 2023 . 

Balance Balance Due Within 
Bonds Payable: July 1, 2022 Additions Retirements June 30 2023 One Year 

State Revolving 2 569,876 0 254,402 2,315,474 258,467 
DW-2016-167 143,194 0 9,528 133,666 10,311 
Series 2022 663,408 0 59,908 603,500 60,350 
Series 2019 2,030,000 0 270,000 1,760,000 275,000 
Series 2020 929,500 0 58,500 871,000 61,750 
Series 2021 1,170,000 0 70,000 11100,000 70 000 

Total 7,505,978 0 7-2,338 6,783,640 735,878 

39 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(5) Long-Term Debt Pay· hie and Oh r Obligations PnyabJ ontinued 

The following schedule reflects the changes in long-term debt as shown in the Enterprise (Natural Gas) 
Fund during the fiscal year 2023. 

Balance Balance Due Within 
Bonds Payable: July 1. 2022 Additions Retirements June 30 2023 One Year 

Series 2020 500,500 0 31,500 469,000 33 ,250 
Series 2022 117,072 0 10 572 106,500 10.650 

Total 617,572 0 42,072 575. -oo 43,900 

Principal and interest requirements to maturity on all outstanding bonds, loans and obligations as of June 
30, 2023, are as follows : 

Year Ending 
June 30, 
2024 
2025 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 

2029-2033 
2034-2036 

Total 

Total 

ral Obli.e.ation 
Pr al Interest 

l O 1.04 
l 
3 

Water and Sewer Deparlment 

Principal Interest 

735,878 139,781 
751,532 130,214 
770,493 119,077 
786,263 100,022 
805,345 80,515 

2,462,615 163,003 

p 

aturaJ Gas DcpartmenL 

Principal Interest 

43,900 16,455 
44,200 15,198 
46,250 13,935 
46,550 12,262 
48,600 10,511 

256,750 27,734 
89,250 2,864 

575,500 

The above bonds payable contain provisions that in the event of default, the lender can use any remedy 
allowed by state or federal law. 

40 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(6) Pension Plan 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan description. Employees of Hohenwald are provided a defined benefit pension plan through the Public 
Employee Retirement Plan, an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the TCRS. The TCRS 
was created by state statue under Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8, Chapters 34-37. The TCRS Board of 
Trustees is responsible for the proper operation and administration of the TCRS. The Tennessee Treasury 
Department, an agency in the legislative branch of state government, administers the plans of the TCRS. 
The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
http://treasury.tn.gov/Retirement/Boards-and-Governance/Reporting-and-Jnvesunent-Policies. 

Benefits prvvided. Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8, Chapter 34-37 established the benefit terms and can 
be amended only by tht.! Tennessee General Assembly. The chief legislative body may adopt the benefit 
terms permitted by statute. Members are eligible to retive with an unreduced benefit at age 60 with 5 years 
of service credit or after 30 years of service credit regardless of age. Benefits are determined by formula 
using the member's highest five consecutive year average compensation and the member•s years of service 
credit. Reduced benefits for early retirement are available al age 55 and vested. Members vest with five 
years of service credit. Service-related disability benefits arc provided regardless of length of serv ice. Pi ve 
years of service is required ror non-service-related disability eligibility. The service related and non-service­
rclated disability benefits arc determined in the same maimer as a service retirement benefit but are reduced 
10 percent and include projected service credits. A variety of death benefits are available under various 
eligibility criteria. 

Member and beneficiary annuitants are entitled to automatic cost of living adjustments (COLAs) after 
retirement. A COLA is granted each July for annuitants retired prior to the 2nd of July of the previous year. 
The COLA is based on the change in the consumer price index (CPI) during the prior calendar year, capped 
at 3 percent, and applied to the current benefit. No COLL\ is granted if the change in the CPI is less than 
on~half percent. A. one percent COLA is granted if the err change is between one-half percent. A member 
who leaves employment may withdraw their employee contributions, plus any accumulated interest. 

Employees covered by benefit terms. At the measurement date of June 30, 2022, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitJed to but not yet receiving bencuts 
Active employees 

Total 

4 1 

42 
38 
67 

147 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(6) Pension Plan, Continued 

Contributions. Contributions for employees are established in the statutes governing the TCRS and may 
only be changed by the Tennessee General Assembly. Employees contribute 5 percentofsalary. Hobenwald 
makes employer contribulions at lhc rate set by the Board of Trustees as determined by an actuarial 
valuation. For lhc year ended June 30, 2023, employer contributions for Hohenwald were ($211,802) based 
-on a rate of (6.04%) percent of covered payroll. By law, employer conttibutions are required to be paid. The 
TCRS may intercept Hohenwald's state shared taxes i[ required employer contributions arc not remitted. 
The employers actuarially determined contribution (/\DC) and member contributions are expected to 
fuiance the costs of benefits earned by members during the year, the cost of administratio~ as well as an 
amortized portion of any unfunded liability. 

Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Hohenwald's net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate net pension liability ( asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2022, actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 2.25 percent 

Salary increases Graded salary ranges from 8.72 to 3.44 percent based on age, including 
inflation averaging 4.00 percent. 

Investment rate of return 6.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation. 

Cost-of-Living Adjustment 2.125 percent 

Mortality rates were based on actual experience including an adjustment for some anticipated 
improvement 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study performed for the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020. The demographic 
assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected future experience. 
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(6) Pension Plan, Continued 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of 
Trustees in conjunction with the June 30, 2020 actuarial experience study. A blend of future capital market 
projections and historical market returns was used in a building-block method in which a best-estimate of 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
is developed for each major asset class. These best-estimates are combined to produce the long-tenn 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates by return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inOatioo of 2.25 percent.. The best-estimates of geometric real rates of 
return and the TCRS in estment policy target asscL aJJocation for each major asset class are summarized in 
the following table: 

Asset class 
U.S. equity 
Developed market international equity 
Emerging market international equity 
Private equity and strategic lending 
U.S. fixed income 
Real Estate 
Short-term securities 

Total 

Long-term Expected 
Real Rate o[Raturn 

4.88% 
5.37% 
6.09% 
6.57% 
1.20% 
4.38% 
0.00% 

TargeL Alloct11ion 
31% 
14% 

4% 
20% 
20% 
10% 

1% 
100% 

The long-term expecred rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of 
Trustees as 6.75 percent based on a blending of the three factors described above. 

Discow11 rate. The discoui1t rate used Lo measure the total pension liability was 6. 75 percent. The projection 
of cash flows used lo determine the discount rale assumed that employee contributions will be made at tbe 
cuncnt rate and that contributions from Hohenwald will be made at the actuarially determined contribution 
rate pursuant to an actuarial valuation in accordance with the funding policy of the TCRS Board of Trustees 
and as required to be paid by state statute. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current active and 
inactive members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of retw-n on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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(6) 

Balance at 6/30/21 
Changes for the Year: 
Service Cost 
Interest 
Changes in Benefit Terms 
Differences between expected and 
Actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions-employer 
Contributions-employees 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including refunds 
of employee contributions 
Administrative expense 
Other changes 
Net changes 

Balance at 6/30/22 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Total Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

(a) 

$8,956,273 

211,638 
605,353 

374,172 

(399,433) 

791 730 

$ 9,748,003 

Increase (Decrease) 
Plan 

Fiduciary Net 
Position 

(b) 

$10,194,752 

153,904 
128,276 

(387,651) 

(399A33) 
(6 226) 

(511,.130) 

$ 9 683,622 

Net Pension 
Liability 
(Asset) 
(a) - (b) 

($1,238 479) 

211,638 
605)53 

374,172 

(153,904) 
(128,276) 
387 651 

6,226 

1,302,860 

$ 64,381 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in /he discount rate The following presents the net 
pensi n liabilit (asset) , f [ lohenwald al cu lated using the dis ount rat f 6.75 p !'Cent, as w Jl a wb t tbe 
net pension liability (asset ould be if it ere calculaled using a c:Liscotmt rate that is l -percentage-p int 
lower (5. 75 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (7 .75 percent) than the current rate: 

Hohenwald's net pension 
Liability (asset) 

1% Decrease 
(5.75%) 

1,407,511 
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Current 
Discount Rate 

{6.75%) 

64,381 

1 % Increase 
(7.r¾> 

(l 042,932) 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(6) P nsion, Continu d 

Pension Expense (income) and Defe.rcd Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

Pension expense. For the year ended June 30) 2023, Hohenwald recognized pension expense(negative 
pension expense) of $115,022. 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resvurc s. For the eat ended June 30 _023, 
Hohenwald reported defen-ed outflows or resources and def erred inflows of re. ourc ·s related to pensi ns 
from the following sources: 

D 

Differences betweeh expected and 
Actual experience 
Net difference between projected and 
Actual earning on pension plan 
Investments 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions subsequent to the 
Measurement date of June 30, 2022 

Total 

322,838 

21 094 
456,282 

D fen·ed I nil ws of Resource . 

98,031 

98,031 

The amounts shown above for 'Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of June 3 0, 2022 ', will 
be recognized as a reduction (increase) to net position liability (asset) in the following measurement 
period. 

Amounts repoited as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense a follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 

2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
Thereafter 

107,611 
99,469 
65.,540 

367,208 
62,362 

In the tab le shown above, positive amounts will increase pension expense while negative amounts will 
decrease pension expense. 
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(7) Other PostcmpJovment Benefits For Retiree HcaJth Insurance 

During the current year the City of Hohenwald terminated its participation in the OPEB plan. 

Plan description - Employees of the City, who were hired prior to July 1, 2015, are provided with pre-65 
retiree health insurance benefits through the closed Local Government OEB Plan (LGOP) administered by 
the Tennessee Depaitment of Finance and Administration. This plan is considered to be multiple-employer 
defined benefit plan that is used to provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). However, 
for accounting purposes, this plan will be treated as a single-employer plan. AlJ el.igible pre-65 retired 
employees and disability participants of local governments, who chose coverage, participate in the LGOP. 

Benefits provided-The City offers the LGOP lo provide health insw·ance coverage to eligible pre-65 retirees 
and disabled participants of local governments. Insurance coverage is the only postemployment benefit 
provided to retirees. An insw·am:e committee created in accordance with TCA 8-27-701 establishes and 
amends the benefit te1ms of the LGOP. All members have the option of choosing between the premier 
preferred provider organization (PPO), standard PPO, Ii mi Led PPO or Lhc wellness health-savings consumer­
driven health plan (CDHP) for healthcare benefits. Retired plan members, of the LOOP, receives the same 
plan benefiLc; as active employees, at a blended premium rate that considers the cost of all participants. This 
creates an implicit subsidy for retirees. Participating employers determine their own policy related to direct 
subsidies provided for the retiree premiums. The City does not directly subsidize and are only subject LO the 
implicit. The LGOP is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and there are no assets accwnulating in a trust Lhat 
meets lhe criteria of paragraph 4 of GASB Statement NO. 75. 

Employees covered by benefit terms. At July 1, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit 
terms of the LGOP: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled lo but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 

Tota1 

0 
0 

_Q 
__Q 

An insurance committee, created in accordance with TCA 8-27-701, establishes the required payments to 
the LOOP by member employers and employees through the blended premiums established for active and 
retired employees. Claims liabilities of the plan arc periodically computed using actuariaJ and statistical 
techniques to established premium rates, for Lhe fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the City paid $0 to the 
LGOP for OPEB benefits as they came due. 
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(7) Other Postemployment BeneJits .For Retiree Health Insurance, Continued 

Total OPEB Liability 

Actuarial assumptions-The total OPEB liability on the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all the periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified. 

Inflation - 2.25% 

Salary increases - Graded salary ranges from 3 .44 to 8. 72 percent based on age, 
including inflation, averaging 4 percent. 

Healthcare cost trend rates - 8.37% for pre-65 in 2022, decreasing annuaJly over a 7-year 
period to an ultimate rate of 4.50%. 8.99% for post-65 in 2022, 
decreasing annually over an 8-year period to an ultimate rate of 
4.50% 

Retiree's share of benefit-related costs - Members are required lo make monthly contributions in order 
to maintain their c0vcrage. Por the purpose of this valuation a 
weighted average has been used with weights derived from the 
current distributions of members among plans offered. 

Unless noted otherwise, the actuarial demographic assumptions used in the June 30, 2022, valuations were 
the same as those employed in the July 1, 2021 Pension Actuarial Valuation of the Tennessee Consolidated 
Retirement System (TCRS). These assumptions were developed by TCRS based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2020. The demographic assumptions were 
adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected fu1l.1re experience. Mortality tables are used to measure 
lhe probabilities of participants dying before and after retirement. The mortality rates employed in this 
valuation are taken from the PUB-201 O Headcount-Weighted Employee mortality table for General 
Employees for non-disabled pre-retirement mortality. with mortality improvement projected generationally 
with MP-2020 from 2010. Post-re(irement tables are Headcount-Weighted Below Median Healthy 
Annuitant and adjusted with a 6% load for males and a 14% load for females, projected generationally from 
2010 with MP-2020. Mortality rates for impaired lives are the same as those used by TCRS and are taken 
from a gender distinct table published in the IRS Ruling 96-7 for disabled lives with a 10% load, projected 
generationally from 2018 with MP-2020. 

Discount rate-The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.54 percent. This rate reflects 
the interest rate derived from yields on a 20-ycar: tax exempt general obligalion murucipal bonds, prevailing 
on the measurement date, with an average rating of AA/Aa as shown on the Bond Buyer20-year Municipal 
GO AA.index. 
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB liability - beginning balance 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 
Interest 
Changes of benefit terms 

June 30, 2023 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Change in assumptions 
Benefit payments 

Net changes 
Total OPEB liability - ending balance 

ontinucd 

Total OPEB 
Liability 

(a) 
$ 342,399 

$ 32,958 
$ 7,773 
$ 
$ (351,944) 
$ 
$ (31,186) 
$ 342 399) 
$ 

Changes in assumptions-The discount rate was changed from 2.16% as of the beginning of the measurement 
p riod to 3.54% as of June 30, 2022. This change in assumption decreased the total OPEB liability. Other 
changes in asswnptioos in lude adjustment to initial per capita costs and health trend rates. 

Sensitivity of total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate-The following presents the total OPEB 
liability related to the LOOP, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower or I-percentage higher than the cWTent discount rate. 

1% Decrease 
( . 4%) 
$ -

Current Discount 
Rate Assumption 

(3.54%) 
$ -

1% Increase 
(4. -4%J 
$ -

Sensitivity of total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate - The following presents the 
total OPEB liability related to the LGOP, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is I-percentage-lower or I -percentage-point-higher than 
the current healthcare cost trend rate. 

Current Healthcare Cost 
1 % Decrease Trend Rate Assumption I% Increase 

(7.37/7 .99% Dccrcasi_ngto 3.50%) (8. 7/8.9 % decreasing l > 4. 0%) (9.37/9.99% de r a ing Lo .50%) 
$ - $ - $ -
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(7) Other Po tempJoymcnt Benefit 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

OPEB Expense - For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the City ofHohenwald recognized negative OPEB 
expense of ($520,654). 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources - For the year ended June 30 2023, th.e 
City of Hohenwald reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB benefits in the LOOP from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and 
Actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Employer payments subsequent to 
The measurement date 

Deferred Outflows 

Total 

The amounts shown above for "Employer payments subsequent to the measurement date" will be recognized 
as a reduction to total OPEB liability in the fo1lowing measurement period. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in employee benefit expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 3 0: 

2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
Thereafter 

In the table shown above, positive amounts will increase employee benefit expense while negative 
amounts will decrease employee benefit expense. 

Plan Assets 
There are no plan assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

(8) Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation: 
The City attorney estimates that potential claims against the City resulting from such litigation will not 
materially affect the financial statements of the City at yearend. 

Grants: 
Amounts received from Grnntor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by Grantor agencies, 
principally the FederaJ government. Any disallowed claims including amounts already colJected, could 
become a liability of the applicable fund. 

(9) rusk Management 

The City is exposed to vadous risks to genera] liability and property and casualty lo~ses. The City has 
decided it is more economically feasible to be in a public entity risk pool as opposed to pw-chasing 
commercial insurance for general liability and property and casualty coverage. The City participates in the 
Public Entity Partners (formerly TML Insurance Pool), which is a public entity risk pool established by lhe 
Tennessee Municipal League, an association of member cities. The City pays an annual premium to the PEP 
for its general liability and property and casualty insw-ance coverage. The pool rcinsures through 
commercial insurance companies. The City has not had claims in excess of insurance coverage during the 
last three years. 

(10) Contributed Capital - EotcrpJ'isc Fonds 

In accordance with GASB No. 33 the City no longer records contributed capital from customer tap fees and 
grants from other governments. The City has recorded the contributed capital into its net position accounts. 

(11) Closure and Post Closure Care Cost 

State and Federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfi U site when it stops 
acceptfrig waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years 
afler closure. The accrued landfill closw·c and post .. closure care cost at ycarend, was $446,880. This 
represents estimated post-closure cost, based on engineer's projections. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TEN ESSEE 

Schedule of Required Supplementary Jnformation 

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related 
Ratios Based on Participation in the Public Employee Pension Plan of TCRS 

Last Fiscal Year ending June 30 

2014 2015 :W16 2017 i 018 2019 

Total pension liability (Bmt) 

Service OOSl s 158,309 s 165,713 5 163,!92 s 186,867 !80,689 178,474 
lntetest s 413,232 s 431,408 s 466,025 s 486,455 497,965 s 524,198 
Changes in benefit 1erms s s 
Differences between •cl\lal & expected experience s (41 ,042) s 198,147 s (18,598) s (90,700) 14,H8 :s 4l, l 7Jl 
Chongc of assumptions s 1 S6,093 s 
8c,,elll payments, including refunds ol' employee contributions S /272,234) S (3lR.880) s (3431497) s /380 288) (J 19,966) 037.952! 
N••t changt in tut•J p•n~ion li~bility {ass•t) s 158,265 s 476,388 $ 2.67,122 $ 358,427 s 373,046 s 407,S99 
·rot<1I ptns!on liability (as,cl)-bcginning S 5.487 ,569 $5,745,834 s 6)2'1J22 s 6.4&9_344 s 6.&47 ,771 S 7.220,817 
Total pension liability (assct)-ending (a) S 5_745.834 $6.222.222 s 6.489,344 s 6 R47,771 s 7-220,8!7 S 7,6"28,716 

Piao lidueiuy nd poslJion 
Contributions-employer s 165,009 136,520 146,966 s 142,153 s 147,152 s 152,14 1 

Contnbu1ioos-cmptnyce s 90,374 s 94,182 s 112,675 s 98,106 101,484 s 104,925 
Nee investtnent income s 877 ,830 s, 188,746 s 165,183 s 7 11 ,219 s 570,8!0 s S0,493 
Bcn•fil payments, including refunds of employee oontnbutions $ (272,231) S. (318.880) s (343,4-97) s /380,"288) S- (319.966) (337,952) 

Administrative e~J)ense s (2,166) s {l,994) s [4,402) s (4,625) s (5 ,338) s (4,9J7) 

Other s 211,386 s s s 
Net change in pio n fiduciary-net pos!lion s 858,813 s 97.574 s 105,311 s 566,665 s 494,142 s 462,670 

Plan fiducia ry net po,ilion-b,ginolng ,. 5.2116,714 S ,145.527 s 6,3.f8.,tla s OIS.077 S 7.40 .11~ 
Plan fiduciary net po,itioo-cnding (b) S ~.115.527 SG, 431101 6, 15,077 $ 7,4(19.2 1 S 7,871,Sll'J 

et Pension Ll3bllity (• et}-endiog (1)-(1)) (39$1,691) s (20 ,879) S 140,932 s L67.306) s (188-402) 5 (243.1731 

PIMD fiduciary od position as a percentage of total pension li1bilily 106,96'1/o 100,31·¾ 97.83% 100,98% 102.61% 103. 19% 

Covered payroll S 1,791,578 Sl,883,029 s 2,027,109 s 1,962,109 s 2,029,678 S 2,098,496 

Ntt JJ•nslon liability (asset) as a peruntage of covered pnyroll -22.31% -1.IJ¾ 695% -3 43% -9.28% -ll.S9% 

Chunge< of anumplions: In 202 l, amoll!lts reported as cllanges of assumptions resulted from changes to the in nation rate. investm•ot rate, of re.rum, 

cost-of-living adjustmenl, sahuy growth ond mo11ality improvements. ln WI 7, amouuts rep<Jned as cb1111gcs of as,umptions resulted from change! to 
the inflation ran,, investment rate of return, cosi-of-llvlng adjusnnem, salary gro\Vlh and monality impmvemtll\S-

GASS 68 requires e 10-Jcaf schedule for this dala to be presented staning with tile implemei,tatlon of GASB 68 , The infonnation in this schedule 
is not required to be presented relmactivdy prior 10 rhe impleniation date. Please refer to previously supplied data from TCRS GASS web~it~ for 

prior years' dara. lf ncedc<I. 
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2020 2021 2022 

s 181 ,842 s 170,041 s 2)1,638 

s 553,294 s 579,988 s 605 ,353 
$ 
s (9,566) s (141,306) s 374,172 
$ s 684,424 s 
s (357.828) s (3]3,3381 $ {J99-43:3) 

s 361,742 s 959.815 s 791.?30 
$ 7,628,7l6 s 7.996,458 $ 8.956.273 
s 7.996.458 s 8,956,273 .I, 9,748003 

$ 160,470 s 157,895 s 153,904 

s 110,669 108,893 s 128,276 
s 388,178 s 2,097,954 $ (387,651) 
s (3)7.828) s (333,338) s {.399,4]3) 

s (4,996) s (5,034) S (6,226) 
s s s 
$ 296,493 2,026,370 s (SJ 1,130) 

7, 71.~&9 s 8.l6S,JS2 10.19~ ,s_ 
8,! K,382 .s l!\,194 ,752 s 9.6113.~22 

s (171,924) s [1,238 ~79) s 64 ,381 

102.15% 113.83% 99.34% 

s 2,213 ,371 s 2.)77,856 s 2,565,059 

-777% -56 87% 1.51% 



CITY 01' RORENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schtdule of Conlrlb~Honi B•ud on P•rtlci11•Uon 'irt the 
Publlc £n1ployoe Pe11sion Pion o(TCRS 

For Ike: Vnr Ended June 30, 2013 

2014 ZQj& W,§_ 

Actuarially delermlned contribu~on 165,009 136.432 146,966 

ContnbulJons in relation lo lhe 
actuarially determined contribuUon 165009 136 432 146,966 

Conlrlbulion deficiency (e,cess) so so so 

Covered-employee payroll 1 791 .578 1,802,11 2 2,027,109 

ConlrlbUllons as a percentage 
covered-employee payroll 9.21% 7.57% 7.25% 

Ci ··116 roqu,m In- · i >chodule fo r mts dat~ 10 b• prosenu,d St>11i1111 with rho lmpkm,mation oPCiA~B 68. The 
,nfi,rmouon in thl• scbodu!o i, not required lo be pre,,mt,-.1 r<Ooactn~b prior to lhe tmptamCJttation d,lt, Pleas< refer 
!o prcviou,ly supplied dai.r from lhe TCRS GASB ._..,bsil• for prior years' dnta, in needed 

Notus to Schedule 

Valuation dale: Acluartally determined coniribuUon rates for fiscal year 2023 were calculated based Qn the 
June 30, 2021 actua.rial valuation. 

Methods .and assump~ons used to determine contrtbuUon rates: 

Actuarial cost method 

AmortlzaHon method 

Remaining amortization period 

Asset valLmUon 

1nllaUon 

Sala,Y Tncreases 

lnveslment Rale of Relum 

ReUrement age 

Mortall(y 

Cost of Living Adlustments 

Entry Age Normal 

Level dollar, closed (not to e,ceed 20 years) 

Varies by Year 

10-yeat smootheel wllhin a 20 percent corridor lo market valu• 

2 .25 percent 

Graded salary rooges from B.72 lo 3 114 percent based on 
age, including Inflafion, 11ven1glno 4,00 ptttcen~ 

6,75 percen~ ~et of inveslflieo! expense, including Inflation 

PaHem or reUrement determined by el(perlence study 

Customlzo!l table based on acwnl expcrionc:e Including an 
adjustmont tor some an.lfcipalcd lmprovemr.nt 

2.1 25 percont 

Chnrw•• ufauumpt,ono. ltt 20 I, 1h1 r~I'""'°~ um~"""' ,.e,ub•ngcd docmuod mflauon r•t• from 
1.SU percent 10 2 lS pcrc•~t; dee« ,tJ Ill, In, .,tm•nt , "' 1l remm r,orn 7 _s pcr«nt to 15 pm•nt: 
d""c""'d tho 0011-or-11 \Oil~ adju nnc,u 1lo1112 !5 porc;ent 10 12l per<enl; Afld mudificd n1ort.1lrly 
usun1ptlons In 11117, lhc (allowh111 uinpUoo, were chll~i;cJ d<crc.utA tnll•tion m• fmm J .00 l"'rccnt 
u, :.so pffi:<ltt. docreMcJ th• ,n,..,.tmwl rate of rcwm from 7 SO puccnt IO 7 ZS ~rc•nt. de rea,e<t tbc cn,t­
uf•ll•h•B •d)llllmC!Jl from 2 !U f!t-fCCII\ IO~-! rorcont; dccrc.ucd •~1ory 11111Wlll i:,illltJ Wl <S fiom n 
••er• c uf"I 1,S p,rtc~t ~ .UI ~Itta~ of ,I Qt, pore nt, •nd 1noJ,1lcd mar'.41ity 414011\pllotu 

~ ZQ1!! ZQll WQ ZQZ1 ~ ~ 

124,594 97,019 109,961 88,274 96,697 113,8B9 211 ,802 

142 253 147,152 152,141 160,470 157,895 153,904 211,802 

{$17,659) ($50,133) ($42,180) (S62 ,196) ($61 ,198) ($40,015) -SO 

1,962 109 2,029,678 2,098,496 2213,371 2,177,856 2,565.059 2,158,298 

6.35% 4.78% 5.24% 444% ~ ,t4% 6.00% 6.04% 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Required Supplementary Information- OPEB 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Measurement Year ending June 30 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service Cost 

Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 

Change in Benefit Terms 

Difference between expected and actual experience 

of the Tota l OPEB Liability 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2018 

27,829 
9,648 

(13 ,543) 

2019 

$ 26,514 $ 

$ 12,115 $ 

$ (38,709) S 

$ (187,730) $ 

$ 5,009 $ 

2020 

17,373 
5,022 

(J0,715) 

55,233 
5,618 

1021 

$ 15,652 $ 

$ 7,018 $ 

$ 280,882 $ 

$ (28,014) $ 
$ 35,530 $ Changes in assumptions and other inputs 

Benefit payments $ (16,203) $ (9,268) $ (10,075) $ (9 ,101) $ 

Net change in Total OPEB liability 

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 
Total OPEB Liability- Ending 

Estimated Covered -Employee Payroll 

Total OPEB Liabilfty as a Percentage of Covered- Employee Payroll 

Notes to Schedule 

$ 
$ 
$ 

IA 

NIA 

7.731 $ (192,069) 
310,692 $ 318.423 
318,423 $ 126,354 

NIA 

NIA 

$ 62,456 $ 301,967 
$ 126,354 $ 188,810 
$ 188,810 $ 490,777 

$ 2,098,496 $ 2,108,456 

9.00% 23.28% 

Note: There are no assets accumulating, in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 ofOASB Statement No. 75 , related to this OPEB plan. 

The amounts reported for each fiscal year were determined as oftbe prior fiscal year-end. The amounts reported for each fiscal year were 
determined as of the prior fiscal year-end. 

This schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

2022 2023 

41,195 $ 32,958 
11,536 $ 7,773 

(19,010) $ 

6,014 $ (351,944) 
(168,037) $ 

(20,076) $ (31 ,186) 
(148,378) $ (342,399) 
490,777 $ 342,399 
342,399 $ 

2,614,097 $ 

13.10% 0.00% 
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INFORMATION 



Descriptjon 

Land 

Buildings 

Improvements 

Vehicles 

Equipment 
Total Capital Assets 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of the Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets By Type 

June 30, 2023 

Balance 
July 1, 2022 Additions Disposals 

$856 ,582 0 0 

3,589,115 0 0 

2,442,120 0 0 

1,486,329 139,826 0 

1,570,073 191 ,730 0 
$9 ,944.219 331 ,556 0 
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Balance 
June 30, 2023 

856,582 

3,589,1 15 

2,442,1 20 

1,626,155 

i,76i,S03 
10,275,775 



Oescnption 

General Government 

Police Department 

Fire Department 

Public Works 

Garage 

Park 

Golf course 

Animal control 

Solid Waste 

Cemetery 
Total Assets 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of the Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Capital Assets By Function and Activity 

June 30, 2023 

Land Buildings Improvements 

$646,726 3,424,870 413,709 

0 1,160 0 

0 0 0 

0 56,085 1,685,110 

0 53,067 0 

0 7,735 340,126 

148,312 3.5,709 0 

0 10,499 0 

33,475 0 0 

28,069 0 3169 
$856,582 3,589,1 15 2.442,120 
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Vehicles and 
Equipment Total 

504,008 4,989,313 

648,206 649,356 

930,691 930,691 

488,.517 2,229,718 

24,1 75 77 ,242 

7,030 354,891 

329,566 513,587 

0 10,499 

455,765 489,240 

0 31 ,238 
3,387,958 10,275,775 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Certificate of Deposits 
All Funds 

General Fund: 
Demand deposits 

Total General Fund 

State Street Aid Fund - demand deposit 

Drug Fund - demand deposit 

Solid' Waste Fund 

Water and Sewer Fund: 
Demand deposits 

Total Water and Sewer Fund 

Natural Gas Fund: 
Demand deposits 

Total Natural Gas Fund 

June 30, 2023 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents -All Funds 
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Carrying 
Value 

$4,224,056 

4,224,056 

156,911 

40,193 

81 ,050 

8,213 

8,213 

2 ,301 ,167 

2,301 ,167 

$6,811 ,590 



Tax Year 
2023 $ 
2022 
2021 
2020 
2019 
2018 

Tax Year 
2023 $ 
2022 
2021 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Collections 
Balance and Changes 

Jul:t 1, 2022 Lev}'. in Assessment 
766,446 0 

750,333 0 694,1 77 
35,354 0 24,857 
11,207 0 8,207 
6,900 0 6,900 

539 0 539 

804,333 766,446 734,680 

Tax 
Adjustment snd 

Tax Rate Tax Lev}'. Collections 
1.1300 $ 766,446 $ 0 
1.1300 750~333 694,177 
1.1253 723,201 712,704 
1.1253 709,912 706,912 

1.35 723,221 723,221 
1.50 757,142 757,142 
1.50 751,654 751 ,654 
1.50 747,739 747,739 
1.50 736,929 736,929 
1.50 735,112 735,112 

All deliquent taxes have been turned over to the County. 
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Balance 
June 30, 2023 

766,446 
56,156 
10,497 
3,000 

0 
0 

836,099 

Outstanding 
Taxes 

$ 766,446 
56,156 
10,497 
3,000 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 



Year 

2024 $ 
2025 

$ 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Debt Service Requirements­
General Obligation Debt 

June 30, 2023 

Capital Outlay Notes 
First TN • Solid Waste 

Principal Interest Principal 

19,200 1,046 19,200 
19,700 531 19,700 

38,900 1,577 38,900 
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Total 
Interest 

1,046 
531 

1,577 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Debt Service Requi rements 
Water and Sewer Fund 

June 30, 2023 

Water and Sewer Revenue Water and Sewer Revenue 
and Tax Refunding Bond State Revolving Loan and Tax Refunding Bond Water and Sewer Revenue Equipment Acquisition CON Stale of Tennessee 

Series 2021 CGA-2008-219 Series 2019 Series2020 Serles 2022 DW-2016-'167 TOTAL TOTAl 
Ym Princieal Interest Princi1,>al Interest Princl11a1 Interest Princi11a1 lnteresl Princi~I Interest Princfl!!!I Interest Prtnci{!BI Interest 

2024 $ 70,000 27,850 258,467 31,7t7 275,000 38,500 61,750 25,752 60,350 14,665 10,311 1,297 735,678 139,7B1 
2025 75,000 26,025 262,215 27,969 280,000 37,850 61 ,750 23,900 62,050 13,199 10,517 1,271 751 ,532 130,214 
2026 75,000 23,775 266,016 24. 168 290,000 36,150 65,000 22,047 63,750 11,691 10,727 1,246 770,493 119,077 
2027 so.coo 21,450 269,871 20,313 295,000 27,450 65,000 19,447 65,450 10,141 ~0,942 1,221 786,263 100,022 
2028 80,000 19,050 273,784 18,400 305,000 18,600 68,250 16,717 67,150 8,551 11,161 1,197 805,3415 B0,515 
2029 80,000 16,650 277,752 12,432 315,000 9,450 71 ,500 14,117 68,850 6,920 11 ,384 1,173 824,486 60,742 
2030 85,000 14,175 281,778 8,406 74,750 11,257 70,550 5,247 11 ,612 1,150 523,690 40,235 
2031 90,000 11,550 285,863 4,321 78,000 8,267 72,250 3,533 11,844 1,127 537,957 28,798 
2032 90,000 8,850 139,728 1,112 78,000 6,707 7S,100 2,627 12,081 1,104 392,909 20,400 
2033 90,000 6,600 81 ,250 5,147 12,323 1,082 183,573 12,829 
2034 95,000 4,750 81 ,250 3,522 12,569 1,060 188,819 9,332 
2035 95,000 2,850 84,500 1,79!! 8,195 532 187,695 5,178 
2036 95,000 950 95,000 950 

$ 1,100,000 184,525 s 2,315,474 146,836 1;760,000 168,000 87 1,000 158,676 603,500 76,573 133,666 13,460 6,783.640 748,072 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Debt Service Requirements 
Natural Gas Fund 

June 30, 2023 

Equipment Acquisition CON Natural Gas Revenue 
Series 2022 Series 2020 TOTAL TOTAL 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Princrpal Interest 
Year 
2024 $ 10,650 2,588 33,250 13,867 43,900 16,455 
2025 10,950 2,329 33,250 12,869 44,200 15,198 
2026 11 ,250 2,063 35,000 11 ,872 46,250 13,935 
2027 11,550 1,790 35,000 10472 46,550 12,262 
2028 11 ,850 1,509 36,750 9,002 48,600 10,511 
2029 12,150 1,221 38,500 7,602 50,650 8,823 
2030 12,450 926 40,250 6,062 52,700 6,988 
2031 12,750 623 42,000 4,452 54,750 5,075 
2032 12,900 464 42,000 3,612 54,900 4,076 
2033 43,750 2,772 43,750 2,772 
2034 43,750 1,897 43,750 1,897 
2035 46,500 967 45,500 967 

$ 106,500 13,513 469,000 85.446 575,500 98,959 
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CITY OF HORE WALD, TEN ESSEE 

Schedule of Cha.J)ges in Long-term Debt by Individual Issue 

June 30, 2023 

Paid and/or 
Original Date Last Issued Matured Refunded 
Amount Interest of Maturity Outstanding During During During Outstanding 
of Issue Rate Issue Date 7/1/2022 Period Period Period 6/30/2023 

Business-Type Activities 

Water and Sewer 

State Revolving 4,948,210 1.44% 2012 12/31/2031 $2,569,876 $ $ 254,402 s $ 2,315,474 
DW-2016-167 400,000 0.90% 2008 10/31/2033 $ 143,194 $ $ 9,528 $ $ 133,666 
Series 2022 663,408 2-3% 2022 6/30/2032 $ 663,408 $ $ 59 ,908 s $ 603,500 
Series 2019 2,620,000 2-3% 2019 5/1/2029 $2,030,000 $ $ 270,000 $ $ 1,760,000 
Series 2020 '\,040,000 2.25% 2020 6/30/2035 $ 929,500 $ $ 58,500 $ $ 871,000 
Se(ies 2021 1,170,000 "2.00% 2021 6/30/2036 $1 ,170,000 $ $ 70,000 $ $ 1,100,000 

Total Notes Payable $ 7,505L978 $ $ 722,338 $ $ 6,783,640 

Natural Gas 

Series 2022 117,072 2-3% 2022 6/30/2032 $ 117,072 $ $ 10,572 $ $ 106,500 

Series 2020 1,,000,000 2,25% 2020 6/30/2035 $ 500,500 $ $ 31 ,500 $ $ 469,000 

Total Notes Payable $ 617 ,572 $ $ 42,072 $ $ 575.500 

Governmental Activities 

CON - Solid Waste 142,360 1.75% 2016 4130/2025 $ 57 600 $ $ 18 700 $ $ 38,900 

Total Notes Payable $ 57,600 $ $ 18.700 $ $ 38,900 

•variable rate ,loan 
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Sewer Rf.I.res • Residential 

Up to 2,000 gallons 

Over 2,000 gallons 

Water Rates - Residential 

Up to 2,000 gallons 

Over 2.000 gallons 

Natural Gas Rates - Residential 

CIT Y OF HOHENW ALO, TE NESS.EE 

Schedule of Uti lity Rates in Force 

June 30, 2023 

Inside City 

$23.58 Minimum charge 

$4.00 per 1,000 gallons 

Inside City 

$15.72 Minimum charge 

$3.07 per 1.000 gallon 

Per 1,000 MCF's - varies each month based on natUJal gas costs. 

There were approximately 3,570 water customers, approximately 1,575 sewer customers and approximat!ey 
2,340 natural gas customers at yearend. 
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Outside City 

$51 .78 Min imum charge 

$6.90 per 1,000 gallons 

Outside City 

$34-52 Minimum charge 

$4.60 per 1,000 gallons 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Federa l and State Financial Assistance 

Fo r the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Receivable Receivable 
Assistance State (Deferred) (Deferred) 

Listing Grant Balance Grant Other Grant Balance 
Number Number Granter Agency June 30, 2022 Receipts Receipts Expenditures Juoe 30. 2023 

State Program: 

N/A Z-19THS128 Tennessee Departmenl 
of Transportation 0 8,973 0 8,973 0 

Total State 0 8,973 0 8,973 0 

Federal Program: 

US Department of Treasury 
21.027 American Rescue Plan Act thru the State of Tennessee ($565,684) 565,684 0 0 ($1, 131,368) 

14.239 HOME Grant US Depanment ofTranspo\1:ation 
thru Tennessee Housing Development 0 158,967 0 158,967 0 

Agency 

Total Federal (565,684) 724,651 0 158 967 (1 ,131,368) 

Total Federal and State (565,684) 733,624 0 167,940 (1,131,368) 

This schedule prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 
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COMPLIANCE AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL 



J □ HN R. P □□ LE, CPA 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

1 34 NORTHLAKE DRIVE 

HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Hohenwald, Tennessee 
Hohenwald, Tennessee 

(615) 822-4177 

I have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
gov mmental acti iti s, the bu iness-type activities, each major fund of the City of Hoh nwald as 
of and for the year en led June 30, 20-3 and the related note to the financial statements, bicb 
collectively comprise the City ofHohenwald's basic financial statements and have issued a rep01t 
thereon dated November 17, 2023. 

Internal Control O\/er Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing my audit of the financial statement I considered the ity of 
Hohenwald·'s internal control over financial reporling (in lernal conu·ol as a basi for designing tb 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum taoc for tbe purpose of :<pressing an pinion 
on the financial tatements, but not for the pw-pos of e pressing an opinion on the effe ti eness 
of the City of Hohen\i ald's internal contl'ol. ccordingly 1 do not express an opinion n the 
effectiveness of the City of Hohenwald' s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employ es, in th normal course of performing their a signed functi os lo pre ent 
or d tect and corre t mis tat ments on a tim I basis. A material weakn ss is a deficien y, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity 1s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a tim ly basis. A signifi ant d ficien i a defi iency, or a c mbinati n of 
deficiencies, in internal control that i l s ev re than a material eak.ness, yet important nough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

My consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all d fici nci s in internal ontrol U1at might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during the audit I did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other .Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Hohenwald's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of the financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of the 
audit and, accordingly, I do not e:x.-press such an opinion. The results of the tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of Tb.is Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of the testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This repo11 is an integral part of an audit performed .in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

November 17, 2023 
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CITY OF HOHENW ALO, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Disposition of Prior Year Comments 

June 30, 2023 

There were no findings in the prior year. 
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